
GOV/ND AND BALA ASSOCIATES (A-, Chartered Accountants 
INDIA 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To, 

The Members of ISHAAN SOLAR POWER PRIVATE LIMITED 

Report o~ the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements 

Qualified Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of M/s. 
ISHAAN SOLAR POWER PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company"), which comprise the 
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss, (including Other 
Comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes In Equity and the Cash Flow Statement 
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, Including a summary of the 
significant accounting pollcies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, except for the effects of the matter described In the Basis of Quallfled opinion section of 
our report, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information 
required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true 
and fair view In conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as 
amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted In India, 

(a) In the case of the Balance sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 3pt 
March, 2025 . 

(b) in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit for the year ended on 
that date 

(c) in the case of Statement of Changes in Equity, the changes In Equity for the year 
ended on that date and 

(d) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that 
date. 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

Our report Is qualified in respect of the matters stated below: 

1. Trade Payable: 

Trade payables aggregating to Rs. 37,519.49 thousand outstanding under trade 
payables as at March 31, 2025 sufficient appropriate audit evidence is not available to 
corroborate the management's assessment of such obligations. 
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2. Other Income: 

Based on the management's assessment and conclusion, liabilities and provisions were 
written back aggregating to Rs. 22,138.30 thousand In the wrrent year and taken as Income 
consequently Impacting the profit for the period and reseives as at March 31, 2025. 

Consequently, we are unable to determine whether any adjustments might be necessary to 
the outstanding flablflties, Impact on the reserves due to write back In the current year and 
unable to comment on the appropriateness of the accounting movement on these flabllltles 
during the year along with the corresponding Impact arising out of above both the matters on 
financial statements. 

We conducted our audit In accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified 
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described In the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
standalone Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are Independent of the 
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics Issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit 
of the standalone Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
qualified opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements. 

Emphasis of Matter 

We draw attention to Note 38 of the standalone Ind AS financial statements annexed to this 
report which explains In detail non-compliances with various RBI guidelines and FEMA 
regulations. 

Our opinion is not qualified In respect of thls matter. 

Other Matter 

We were appointed as statutory auditors of tl1e Company with effect from 161h, October 
2024 following the resignation of the previous auditors. We have audited the accompanying 
standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 3pt March 2025, and 
accordingly, express our opinion thereon. We were not the auditors of the financial 
statements for the earlier part of the financial year, which have been audited by the 
predecessor auditor who expressed modified opinion on those financial statements on 22nd 

May 2024." 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance In our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the current period. 
These matters were addressed In the context of our audit of the standalone Ind AS Financial 
Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 
section, we have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be 
communicated In our report. 



s. 
NO 
1. 

Key Audit Matters 

Accuracy of recognition, 
measurement, 
presentation and disclosure of 
revenues and other related 
balances in view of adoption of 
Ind AS 115 "Revenue from 
Contracts with Customers" 

The application of this revenue 
accounting standard Involves certain key 
judgements relating to Identification of 
distinct performance obligations, 
determination of transaction price of the 
appropriateness of the basis used to 
measure revenue recognized over a 
period. Further, it comprises the point In 
time when transfer of control has 
occurred regarding sale and Installation of 
solar rooftop systems and assessing the 
degree of completion of service 
maintenance contracts which are 
accounted for over t ime. Recognition of 
the Company's revenue is complex due 
to several types of customer contracts 
utilized, including sale of solar rooftop 
systems and service Income aspect of the 
contracts pertaining to the solar water 
pumps. Refer Note 3(b) of the standalone 
Ind AS financial statements. 

Auditor's Response 

Our procedures Included, among others, 
obtaining an understanding of contract 
execut ion processes and relevant controls 
relating to the accounting for customer 
contracts. We tested the relevant internal 
controls used to ensure the 
completeness, accuracy and timing of 
revenue recognized, lncludlng controls 
over the degree of completion of service 
contracts at year-end. 

We read a sample of both sales and 
service contracts to assess whether the 
method for recognition of revenue was 
relevant and consistent with Ind AS 115 
and has been applied consistently. We 
focused on contract classlflcatlon, 
allocation of Income and cost to individual 
performance obligations and timing of 
transfer of control. Where a contract 
contained multiple elements, we 
considered Management's judgements as 
to whether they comprised performance 
obligations that should be accounted for 
separately, and In such cases, challenged 
the judgements made In the allocation of 
consideration to each performance 
obllgation. 

We evaluated and challenged the 
significant judgements and estimates 
made by Management In applying the 
Company's accounting policy to a 
sample of specific contracts and 
separable performance obligations of 
contracts, and we obtained evidence to 
support them. Including details of 
contractual agreements, delivery records 
and cash receipts. For the contracts 
selected, we Inspected original 
signed cont racts and reconciled the 
revenue recognized to the underlying 
accountina records. 



Information Other than the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements and 
Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors Is responsible for the other Information. The other 
Information obtained at the date of this auditor's report Is Information Included in the 
Director's report but does not Include the standalone Ind AS financial statements and our 
auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other 
Information and we do not express any form of assurance concluslon thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financlal statements, our responsibility 
Is to read the other Information and, In doing so, consider whether the other information Is 
materially Inconsistent with the standalone Ind AS financial statements, or our knowledge 
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
this other Information, we are required to report that Fact. As described in the Basis for 
Quallfled Opinion section above, we were unable obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence 
with respect to certain llabllltles aggregating to Rs. 37,519.49 thousand outstanding under 
trade payables as at March 31, 2025 to corroborate the management's assessment of such 
obligations; llablllties and provisions were written back aggregating to Rs. 22,138.30 
thousand In the current year and taken as income consequently Impacting the Reserves as at 
March 31, 2025. Hence, we are unable to determine whether any adjustments might . be 
necessary to such amounts and the corresponding impact on Income tax, net Income and 
shareholders' Funds. Accordingly, we are unable to conclude whether or not the other 
information Is materially misstated with respect to this matter. 

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements: 

The Company's Board of Directors Is responsible for the matters stated In Section 134(5) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these standalone 
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance and Cash Flows of the Company In accordance with the Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) accounting principles generally accepted In India, Including the 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsiblllty also 
Includes maintenance of adequate accounting records In accordance with the provisions of 
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other Irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting pollclesi making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, lmplementatlon and 
maintenance of adequate Internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair 
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management ls responsible for 
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either Intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
reallstic alternative but to do so. 



The Board of Directors are also responslble for overseeing the company's financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone Ind AS Financial 
Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to Issue 
an auditor's report that lndlides our opinion. Reasonable assurance Is a high level of 
assurance, but Is not a guarantee that an audit conducted In accordance with SAS wlll 
always detect a material misstatement when It exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 
or error and are considered material If, Individually or In the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to Influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these standalone Ind AS financial statements. 

As part of an audit In accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a materlal misstatement resultlng from fraud Is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, Intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of Internal control, 

• Obtain an understanding of Internal control relevant to ttle audit In orde·r to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate In the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's Internal control 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting pollcles used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention In our auditor's report to the related disclosures In the 
standalone Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are Inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conduslons are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the standalone Ind AS 
financial statements, lndudlng the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial 
statements represent the underlying transactions and events In a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

Materiality ls the magnitude of misstatements In the standalone Ind AS financial 
statements that, lndlvldually or In aggregate, makes It probable that the economic 



decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. 
We consider quantitative materlality and qualltatlve factors In {I) planning the scope of our 
audit work and In evaluating the results of our work; and (II) to evaluate the effect of any 
Identified misstatements In the flnanclal statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, Including any 
significant deficiencies In Internal control that we Identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding Independence, and to communicate with them 
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
Independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance In the audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the 
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated In our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably 
be expected to outweigh the public Interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirement 

1. As required by Sectlon143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and except for the matter described In the Basis for Qualified opinion 
section above, obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and bellef were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

(b) Except for the possible effects of the matter described In the Basis for Qualified opinion 
section above, In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been 
kept by the Company so far as It appears from our examination or those books; 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss Including Other Comprehensive 
Income, Statement of Changes In Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by 
this Report are In agreement with the relevant books of account; 

(d) Except for the possible effects of the matter described In the Basis for Qualified opinion 
section above, In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements 
comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st 
March 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are 
disqualified as on 31st March 2025 from being appointed as a director In terms of 
Section 164 (2) of the Act; 



(f) The qualifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters 
connected therewith are as stated In the Basis for Qualified Opinion section above. 

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the Internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to 
our separate Report In "Annexure A". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on 
the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's Internal financial 
controls over flnanclal reporting. 

(h) The company being a private llmited company, the provisions of section 197 of the 
Act In respect of managerial remuneration Is not appllcable; 

(t) With respect to the other matters to be Included in the Auditor's Report In 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as 
amended In our opinion and to the best of our Information and according to the 
explanations given to us: 

I. The Company does not have any pending lltlgatlons which would impact Its 
financial position. 

II. The Company did not have any long-term contracts lncludlng derivative contracts 
for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

Ill. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

lv. a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and 
belief, no funds (which are_ material either lndivldually or in the aggregate) have 
been advanced or loaned or Invested (either from borrowed funds or share 
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or In any 
other person or entity, Including foreign entity ("Intermediaries"), with the 
·understanding, whether recorded In writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary 
shall, whether, dlrectly or Indirectly lend or Invest In other persons or entitles 
·Identified In any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate 
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of Its knowledge and 
belief, no funds (which are material either Individually or in the aggregate) have 
been received by the Company from any person or entity, Including foreign entity 
("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded In writing or 
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or Indirectly, lend or Invest 
In other persons or entitles Identified In any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 
of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security 
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

~) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and 
appropriate In the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused 
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause {I) and {II) of Rule ll(e), 
as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement. 

v. The company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year. 



vi. Based on our examination, which Include test checks, the company has used 
accounting software for maintaining Its books of account for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2025 which has feature of recording audit trall (edit log) facility 
and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions 
recorded In the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not 
come across any Instances of the audit trail feature being tampered with and the 
audit trail has been preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements 
for record retention. 

2. The provisions of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by 
the Central Government of India In terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, we give In "Annexure B" a statement on the matters specified In 
paragraphs 3 & 4 of the Order. 

PLACE: CHENNAI 
DATE: 25-04•2025 

For GOVIND AND BALA ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
FIRM REG. NO.: 006168S 

~ 
N RAJAGOPALAN 
PARTNER 
MEM. NO: 217550 
UDIN: ;l 5 '.l. n sn 6, rtl L "'2..~ S -r 4 4 7 



ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUOITOR'S REPORT ON THE STANDALONE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF M/S ISHAAN SOLAR POWER PRIVATE LIMITED 

Report on the Internal Flnanclal Controls under Clause (I) of Sub-section 3 of 
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the Internal financial controls over financial reporting of ISHAAN SOLAR 
POWER PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company") as of March 31, 2025 In conjunction with our 
audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on 
that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Flnanclal Controls 

The Company's management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and 
maintaining Internal financial controls based on the Internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of Internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include 
the design, Implementation and maintenance of adequate Internal financial controls that 
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of Its business, 
Including adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable• financial Information, as required under the 
Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as "the Act"). 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility Is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit In accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, Issued by ICAI and deemed to be 
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to 
an audit of Internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial 
Controls and, both Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate Internal 
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and If such 
controls operated effectively In all material respects. 

Our audit Involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 
the Internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting Included 
obtaining an understanding of Internal flnanclal controls over financial reporting, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating tlie design and 
operating effectiveness of Internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor's Judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's Internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting. 



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's Internal flnanclal control over financial reporting Is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the rellablllty of flnanclal reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes In accordance with generally 
accepted accounting prlnclples. A company's Internal flnanclal control over flnanclal 
reporting Includes those policies and procedures that 

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, In reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) -provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements In accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on 
the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
Including the possibility of collusion or Improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of 
any evaluatton of the Internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the Internal financial control over financial reporting may become 
Inadequate because of changes In conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our Information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the Company has, In all material respects, an adequate Internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting and such Internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the Internal control over flna11cial 
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated In the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

PLACE: CHENNAI 
DATE: 25-04•2025 

For GOVIND AND BALA ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
FIRM REG. NO.: 006168S 

' N RAJAGOPALAN I 

PARTNER 
MEM.NO:217550 
UDIN: 2,.ryl.\ 1SSl> (3,YVl\.. "Z-~ $ 7 4 .-, 1 



Annexure B referred to In Independent Auditors' Report to the members of the 
company on the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31 
March 2025, we report that: 

I. In respect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets: 

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records, showing full parttculars Including 
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment 

(B) The Company does not have any Intangible assets and accordlngly, reporting 
under cfause 3(I)(a) (B) of the Order Is not applicable to the company. 

(b) The Management has an annual program of verification of Property, Plant and 
Equipment. In our opinion, the program of such verification Is reasonable having regard 
to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. According to the Information 
and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such 
verification. 

(c) The Company doesn't have any immovable property as Property, Plant and 
Equipment, Accordlngly, paragraph 3(I)(c) of the Order Is not applicable to the 
Company, 

(d) The Company doesn't revalue Its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(I)(d) of the Order Is not appllcable to the Company. 

(e) According to Information and explanatlons given to us, no proceedings have been 
initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benaml property under the 
Benaml Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(I)(e) of the Order Is not applicable to the Company. 

ll, (a) The management has conducted physical verification of Inventory at reasonable 
Intervals during the year. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such 
verification by the management Is appropriate and no material discrepancies were 
noticed, However, the company does not have any Inventory at the year end. 

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits In excess oft 5 crore, 
In aggregate, at any points of time during the year, from banks or flnancial Institutions 
on the basis of security of current assets and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of 
the Order Is not applicable to the Company. 

Ill. (a) The Company has- provided loans to its subsidiary company. The details of the 
same are given below: 

Particulars Loans 
(Rs. '000) 

Aggregate amount during the 
year: 
- Subsidiaries 5,338.23 
Balance outstanding as at balance 
sheet 
date: 
- Subsidiaries 12,805.90 

(b) The terms and conditions of all loans provided during the year are not, prima 
facle, prejudtclal to the Company's Interest. 



(c) In respect of loans granted by the Company during the year; the schedule of 
repayment of prlnclpal and the payment of the Interest has not been stipulated 
and accordingly, we are unable to comment as to whether the repayments of 
principal and interest are regular. 

(d) In the absence of stipulated schedule of repayment of prlnclpal and payment of 
interest, we are unable to comment as to whether there Is any amount which Is 
overdue for more than 90 days. 

(e) The Company has not granted loans which had fallen due during the year, 
Further, no fresh loans were granted to any party to settle the overdue loans in 
nature of loan. 

The Company has granted loans which are repayable on demand, as per details 
below: 

(Rs.'000) . 

Particulars All Parties Promoters Related 
Parties 

Aggregate of 
loans/ advances In 
nature of loan 
- Repayable on demand (A) 12,805.90 - 12,805.90 
- Agreement does not 
specify 
any terms or period of 
repayment (B) 
Total (A+B) 12,805.90 12,805.90 
Percentage of 100% 100% loans/advances In 
nature of loan to the total 
loans 

Iv. In our opinion and according to the Information and explanations given to us, the 
company has compiled with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the companies 
Act 2013 In respect of loans, guarantee, security and Investments as appllcable. 

v. The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be 
deposits. Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order Is not applicable. 

vi. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government 
under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business 
activities carried out by the Company. Hence, reporting under clause (vi) of the Order 
Is not applicable to the Company. • 

vii. (a)The company Is regular In depositing with the appropriate authorities ·undisputed 
statutory dues Including Income tax, Goods and Service Tax etc., and other material 
statutory dues as applicable to It except Tax Deducted at Source (TDS) and 
accordingly there Is no undisputed statutory dues outstanding as at balance sheet date 
for a period more than six months from the date they became payable. 



(b) According to the Information and explanation given to us, there are no disputed 
amounts payables In respect of dues referred to In sub-clause (a) were In arrears as at 
31st March 2025. Hence, reporting under clause 3(vll) (b) of the Order Is not applicable 
to the company. 

viii. There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded Income that have been 
surrendered or dlsclosed as Income during the year In the tax assessments under the 
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961), 

Ix. (a) According to the Information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
defaulted In repayment of Its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest 
thereon to any lender. 

(b) According to the Information and explanations given to us Including representation 
received from the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit 
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by 
any bank or financial institution or other lender. 

(c) In our opinion and according to the Information and explanations given to us, there 
was no term loan applled for or received during the year. Hence, reporting under clause 
3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on 
an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the 
Company on short term basis have not been utilized for long term purposes. 

(e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on 
an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not 
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its 
subsidiaries, except for the following: 

Nature Name of Amount Name of the Relation Purpose for 
of fund lender Involved subsidiary, which funds 
taken joint were utilized 

venture, 
associate 

Working SILRES 5,338.23 SEI Tejas Subsidiary To provide 
Private 

Capital Energy Limited working capital 
Loan Solutions loan to the 

Pvt Ltd subsidiary 

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held In its subsidiaries or 
associate companies. 

x. (a) The Company has neither raised any money by way of Initial public offer nor 
further public offer (Including debt Instruments) during the year. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3(x)(a) of Order Is not applicable to the Company. 

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence 
reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order Is not applicable. 



xi. (a) According to the Information and explanation given to us, no fraud by the Company 
and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year 
and accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xl)(a) of the Order Is not applicable. 

(b) No reporting requirement under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies 
Act as there Is no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has 
been noticed or reported during the year and accordlngly, reporting under clause 
3(xl)(b) of the Order Is not appllcable, 

(c) The establishment of whistle-blower mechanism Is not appllcable to the company 
and accordlngly, reporting under clause 3(xl)(c) of the Order Is not appllcable. 

xii. The Company Is not a Nldhl Company. Thus, the paragraph 3(xl1) (a), (b) and (c) of 
the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

xiii. According to the Information and explanation given to us • and based on · our 
examination of the records of the company, In our opinion, transactions with the 
related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013, 
whenever applicable. Further the details of such related party transactions have been 
disclosed In the financial statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting 
Standard (Ind AS) 24, 

xiv. In our opinion and based on our examination, the company doesn't have an Internal 
audit system and Is not required to have an Internal audit system as per provisions of 
sectlori 138 of the company Act 2013. Accordingly, the reporting requirement under 
clause 3(xlv) (a) and (b) of the Order Is not appllcable. 

xv, Based upon the audit procedures performed and the Information and explanations 
given by the management, the company has not entered Into any non-cash 
transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the clause 3 
(xv) of the Order Is not applicable to the Company. 

xvi. (a) According to the Information and explanation given to us, the company is not 
required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 
and accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvl)(a) of the Order Is not applicable. 

(b) The company Is not engaged In any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance 
activities. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvl)(b) of the Order ls not applicable. 

(c) The Company Is not a Core Investment Company as defined In the regulations made 
by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvl)(c) of the Order is 
not applicable. 

(d) There Is no core investment company within the Group (as defined In the Core 
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting 
under clause 3(xvl)(d) of the Order ls not applicable. 

xvii. The Company has Incurred cash losses in the current and Immediately preceding 
financial years amounting to Rs. 4,956.41 thousand and Rs. 6,063.56 thousand 
respectively 



xviii, There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and we have 
taken Into consideration the Issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing 
auditors as per their Audit report dated 22nd May 2024. 

xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of 
flnanclal assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying 
the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management 
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, 
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material 
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company ls not 
capable of meeting Its llabllitles existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they 
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state 
that this Is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state 
that our reporting Is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we 
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a 
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as 
and when they fall due. 

xx. The provisions of section 135 of the companies Act 20P with regard to corporate 
social responsibility are not applicable to the company. Accordingly, reporting under 
clause 3(xx) (a) and (b) of the Order is not applicable. 

xxl. The requirement of clause 3(xxl) Is not applicable to the company. 

PLACE: CHENNAl 
DATE: 25·04•2025 

For GOVIND AND BALA ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
FIRM REG. NO.: 0'061685 

~' 
N RAJAGOPALAN 
PARTNER 
MEM.N0:217550 
UDIN: ~ t; '.l. ]7~5\, BIYl L "2..8>~ 7 LJ 'i '1 



Ishaan Solar Power Private Limited 
CIN: l i40106TN20IOPTC136715 
Balance Shcel as at JI March 2025 
(A ll amounts are in INR 1ho11s/1nds unless olhem-lse sl/Jted) 

ASSETS 
Non-Current Assets 
Property, plant and e4uipm1:11t 
Financial Assets 

(i) Investments 

(i) Ottler Financial Assets 

Other Non-Current asselS 
Total Non-Current Assets 

Current Assets 
Inwntoncs 
Financial Assets 

(i) Trade Receivables 

(ii) Cash and Cash Equival~ts 

(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 

(iii) Loans 
(iv) Other Fin1111cial As.,;ets 

Other Cun-ent Assets 
Total Current Assets 
TOTAi. ASSETS 

EQUITY AND LJABU,n 'IES 
Equily 
Equity S hare capital 

Other Equi ty 
(i) Reserves and Surplus 

Total t:quity 

LIABlLITIES 
Non-Current Linhilities 
Provisions 

Other Non Current Liabilities 
Total Non-Current Liabilities 
Cu rnnt I .iabilities 
Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 

(ii) Trade Payables 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprise and small cnterprists 

Total outstanding dues other than mkro enterpri,e and small 
Clltt,"J)TISCS 

(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 

Other Current Liabilities 
Total Current Liabilities 

TOTAL EQUrfY AND LIABlllTU-:S 

Notes fonning part of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

This is the Halance Sheet referred to in our report 

Fur Govind nnd Bala Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: 006 168S 

~ 
N lfajagopalnn 
Partner 
Membership No: 2 J 75 
Plau:: Ghennai 

Date : 25/04/2025 

Note~ 

4 

5 

6 
7 

I! 

9 

10 
11 

12 
13 
14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

1-44 

As at 
March JI, 2025 

24.61 

22,304 15 

8 l\l.64 
23,1411.40 

47,8 19.60 

5,244.81 

16,7 10.15 

12,293, I I 
10.27696 
92,344.63 

1, 15,493.03 

1,850 00 

36.919.04 
38,769.114 

4,073.08 

9.356 04 
13,429.12 

18,400.00 

401.76 

38,473.99 

!, 113.27 

4,905.85 
63,294.86 

I, I 5.493.03 

As at 
MarrhJl , 2024 

39.30 

21,3\11.87 

2,156. 10 
23,587.27 

l ,636.10 

53,677 75 
764,87 

21,294.05 

12,347.26 

19,677.24 
1,09,397.28 
1.32,984.54 

1,850.00 

26,954.3 I 
28,804.31 

3,\118.12 

10.282.09 
14.200.21 

19.200.74 

4,903.23 
48,098 95 

12,260.26 

5,5 16.84 
89,980.02 

1,32,984.54 

f or and on behall' of the Board of nirectors of 
Jshaan Solar Power India Private Limited 

Govindarajan 
Director 
DIN: 11021441 

Place: Chennai 
Date : 25/04/2025 

Venkatesan Krishnan 
Director 
DIN: 082457 !8 
Place: Chennai 

Date : 25104/2025 



Ishaan Solar Power Private Limited 
CIN: U40l06TN2010PTC136715 
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(All amounts are in JNR thousand~ unless othenvise stated) 

Revenue from operations 
Other income 
Total Income 

Expenses 
Consumption of material, erection and engineering expenses 
Employee benefit expenses 
Finance costs 
Depreciation 
Other expenses 
Total expenses 
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 

Tax Expense: 
Current Tax 
Deferred tax 

Profit/(Loss) for the year 

Other Comprehensive Income 
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or 1 oss 
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 

Earnings per equity share (face value Rs. IO each) 
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share in Rupees 

Notes 

23 
24 

25 

26 
27 
4 
28 

29 

30 

For the Year ended 
March 31, 2025 

13,064.17 
24,587.98 
37,652.15 

3,331.87 
2,557.17 
2,701.49 

14.66 
18,556.85 
27,162.03 
10,490.12 

489.38 

10,000.74 

(35.99) 
9,964.75 

9,964.75 

53.86 

Notes forming part of the lnd AS Financial Statements 1-44 
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report 

For Govind and Bala Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: 006168S 

N Rajagopalan 
Partner 
Membership No: 217550 
Place: Chennai 
Date : 25/04/2025 

Govi nda raj an 
Director 
DrN: 11021441 
Place: Chennai 
Date : 25/04/2025 

For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

60,635.25 
8,202.06 

68,837.31 

44,098.56 
2,569.21 
5,748.22 

14.30 
36,654.45 
89,084.74 

(20,247.43) 

2,548.28 

(22,795.71) 

95.77 
(22,699.93) 

(22,699.93) 

(122.70) 

Venkatesan Krishnan 
' Director 

. DIN: 082457 18 

J>lace: Chennai 

Date : 25/04/2025 



Ishaa n Solar Power Privn te Limited 
CIN; ll40106Dl2010PTCl36715 
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended Mareh JI, 2025 
(All amounts are in INR thausands unles., olhenvise staled) 

A. Cash Flow from Oper~ting Adivities 
Profit I {Loss) Before Tax 
Adju.\'lmettt.\'for: 
Depreciation and amorti.~ation expenses 
Interest income on lixcd deposits/loans 
Uabil ities no longer required written back 
Finance Cost 
Provisions for L:mployee benefits 
Provision for diminution in the value of assets 
13ad debts written off 
Inventory Writeoff 
Lo.in write off 
Income Tax Expenses 
Operating Joss before working capital changes 
Change in opera ling assets and linbilities: 
Adjustments for (increase) I decrease in operating assets: 
Adjustments for iricrease I (decrease) in opemting liabilities 
Inventories 
rrade Receivables 
Other llnancial assets -Current alld Non-Currenl 
Other Current Assets 
Trade Payables 
Otl1er Current Liabilities & provisions 
Other financial liabilities - current 

Taxes (Paid}/ Rel'und 
Net Cash used in Opera ting Activities 

B. Cnsll Flow from Investing Activities 
Inter corporate loans 
Restricted Bank Balances 
Bank Overdraft 
Interest received from l'ixed deposits/loans 

I\ et Cash from lm·esting Activities 

C Cash Flow from Financing Activities 
(Rcpaymem of)/ Proceeds from borrowings 
Interest paid during the year 
Net CAsh from / (used in) Financing Activities 

Nd increast in Cash and Ca.,h Equivalents ( A+B+C) 
Cash ~nd Cnsh Equiv~lents Al the beginning or the year 

Cash and Cash Equivalents as per cash flow st~temcnt 

Nole: 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31 .,farch 2025 31 \farch 2024 

10,490. 12 (20,247.43} 

14.66 14,30 
(1,979 09) (2,586.89) 

(22,214 83) (5,443.23) 
2,701 .49 5,748 22 

4,164.9() 17,976 70 
362 ()2 

1,636.10 l,636 09 
l,0W00 

489 38 
(3,255.26) (2,902.23) 

1,636 10 23,923.29 
3,904 91 34,225.66 
1,143.44 994,00 
8,470 85 (7,807.73) 

(16,857 30) (271 25) 
(271 56) 64853 

(5,228.83) 48,810.27 

(2,59145) 326 99 
(7,820.28) 49,137.27 

(5,244 90) (3,199 10) 
3,254 87 579,97 
6,940 00 (6,940 00) 

876 28 1,334 84 

5,826.25 (8,224.29) 

2,018 23 (45,180 71) 
4,455 74 (389.24) 
6,473.97 (45,569.94) 

4,479.94 (4,656.96) 
764 87 5,42 1 83 

5,244.81 76".87 

I The cash l\(lw statement is prepared llnder "Indirect rndhod" as set oul in IND AS 7 Statements ofCasn Flows 
n(>ti fied in Section 133 of Lhe Companies Act, 20 13 
2 Reconciliation ol'Cash and ca~h equivalents with the Balance sheet 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 5,244 81 764 87 

C,ish and Cash Eguiv~lents at the tnd of the yenr 5,244.81 764.87 

Notes forming part or Lhe Ind AS Financial StaLemenLs 
This is the Slatcmenl ol'Cash Flow relerred to in our report 

For Govind and Bala Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registratio11 No: 006168S 

-
<~~ 
~ Ra_jagopalon 
Partner 

Member.ship No 2 \ 7550 

Place: Chennai 

Date : 25104/2025 

Govinda rnjan 
Director 

DIN: 11021441 

Place: Chennai 

Date : 25104/2025 

Ve..nkatesan Krishnan 
Director 

~ower .O'i't- IN: 082457 18 

....._f(io~·Plncc: Chennai 0 ~, 
en Date : 25/04/2025 

~ 
~~ (j, 

.S-; * / 



lsbaan Solar Power Private Limited 
CIN: L'40106MP2010PTC024790 
Statement of Changes in Eqnity for the ye•r ended Jl 11-IHrch 2025 
(1111 amounts tire i11 INR 1h01LWJnd~ unh!~·-~· olhl!FW1se .\•fated) 

A Funltv Share cuuirnl (nls<> refer note I~) . . . 
Particulars Number 

As at 31 Ma~h 2023 
Equity share, /NR 10 each 1,85.000 
is,u •~. subscribed •nd paid 
Issue of euuitv shares 
As at 3 l March 2024 1,85,000 
Issue of equitv ,hares 
As at 31 March 2025 1.85.000 

8 Other 1'11uitv , 

Particulars Capital Reserve 

As at 31 Murch 2023 1,26,951.63 
Loss for the year -
Other comprehensive income for -the year 

As at 31 :\-larch 2024 1.Z6.951.6J 
Lo» for I he ve•r 
Other comprehensive income for 
1hcyear 
As •I 31 March 202S 1,26,951.63 

Notes fonningp•rtuflhc Ind AS Vinancial statements 

This is S!alement of cbanges in equity reforred to in our report 

For Govind •nd Bala Associates 
Chartered Accow,tant.s 
l'illil Registration l\o: OOo I 68S 

~ . 
N !l ~ r , 
Partner 
Membership No: 217$5 

Place: Cheru,ai 
Dale : 25/0412025 

Amount (INR) 

1,850 00 

l.85000 

1.850 00 

Securities rremium account 

1-44 

Govlndarajan 
Director 
DIN: 1102144! 

Pl ace: Chern,a i 
Date : 25/04/2025 

1,750.00 

-
-

1,750.00 

-
1.750,00 

Retained Earning• 

(79,047.39) 
(22,795 .71) 

-
(l,Ol,843,JO) 

10.000.74 

(9 I ,842.36) 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Vcnkates•n Krishnan 
Director 
DII\ 082457\ 8 

Place: Chennai 
Date : 25/04/2025 

-

0 96 

95.77 

-35 99 

59,78 

T•ral equity attributable to 
equity holders 

49,654,24 
(22.795 71) 

0,96 

26,9501 
10,000.74 

(35.99) 

36,919.04 



lshaan Solar Power Private Limited 

Notes to Standalone financial Statements for the year ended 31 c\'larch 2025 
(Alf amounts are in //VH. rhomand, unless otherwise s/at~d) 

Background 

lshaan Solar Power Private Limited ('the Company') is a priv~te ~ompaay domidled and headquartered in India and was in~orporated on 23 
November 2010 under the Companies Act, l 956. The Company is engaged in the husiness of rendering design, engmcering, installation an<l 
maintenance of solar water pumps and solar rooflop systems. 

2 Basis of pre pa ration 

a. Statement of compliance 
These linancial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the 
a"crual basis except lor certain rmun"ial instrnments which are measured at fair values, at the end or each rcponing period as explained m the 
accounting policies below, the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act') (to lhc extent notified). The lnd AS are prescribed ut1dcr 
Section !33 of the /\ct read with llule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) llLJles, 2015 aml Companies (Indian Accmmting 
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. 

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly-issued accounting standard is initially a<lopled or a revision to an 
existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. Details of the Company's significant accounting policies 
arc included in Note 3. 

h. Functional and presentation rurnncy 

The functional currency of the Company is the Indian rupee. All the financial information have been presented in Indian Rupees (Rs. ) except for 
share data or as stated otherwise, 

c. Basis of measurement 
These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cosc basis except for the following items: 
a) Certain financial assets and financial liabilities - !'air value 

d. Use of estimates 
In preparing these financial statements, Management has made judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting 
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income an<l expenses. Aclual results could di tTer from those estimates. 

Esli nrntcs and underlying a~sumptions arc reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively. 

Judgements arc made in applying ac,ounting policies that have the most signifaant effects on the amounts recognized in the financial 
statements and the same is disclosed in the relevant notes to the financial statements. 

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a matenal adjustment arc reviewed on an on-going basis 
and Lhe same is disclosed in the relevant notes to the financial statements. 

e. Measuremtnt of fair \'alucs 
Fair value is the price that would he received to sell an asset or paid to transtcr a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants al 
the measurement date, regardless o!' whether that price is direclly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating lhe 

fair value ofan asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristi"s ol'the asset or liability if market participants would take 
those characteristics into ac"ount when pricing the a~set or liahility at the mea,urement date. r air value for measurement and /or disclosure 
purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for leasing transactions that are within the scope of lnd AS l 7, and 

measurements th.at have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in !nd AS 
36. 

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements arc categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 hased on thi: degree to which the inputs 
to the fair value measurements arc observable and the s1gnilicance or the mputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described 
as follows: 

- Level 1 inputs arc quoted prices ( una<lj usted) in active markets for identical assets or I iabilities tltal the entity can access at the measurement 
<lat~; 

- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level I, that are observahlt: for the asset or liability, either directly (i.c .as 
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); 

- Level J inputs are unohservablc inputs for the asset or liability, 



lshean Solar Power Private Limited 
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended JI :\larch 2025 

(All umounts are in f/VR 1houscmds unfr,;s otherwise s/a/ed) 

3 Material accou11ting polides 

a Foreign currency transactions 
The functional currency or lhe Company is the Indian rupee. The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee. 

foreign-currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated into the relevant functional currency at exchange rate in effect 
at the 13alance Sheet date The gains or losses resulting from such translations are included in net profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Transaction gains or losses realired upon settlement or roreign cunciicy transactions are included in determining net profit for the period in 
which the transaction is settled. Revenue, expenso: and cash-llow items denominated in foreign currencies are translated into lhe relevant 

runcticmal currencies using the exchange rate in effect on the date of the transaction. 

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of profit and loss 011 a net basis within other gainsl(!osses). 

b Revenue recognition 
Revenue is measured at the fair value or the consideration received or receivable for goods supplied and services rendered, net of returns, 
discuunts lo customers and excludes taxes collected from customers. Revenm: from the sale of goods is recognised when significant risks and 
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the customer, which is mainly upon delivery, the amount or revenue can be measured rdiably and 
recovery of the consideration is probable. Revenue from services is recognised in the periods in which the services arc rendered and the 
perrormancc obligations arc discharged. The company exercises judgement in detem1ining whether the performance obligation is satisfied at a 
point in time or over a period of time. Ilowever, where the ultimate collection of revenue lucks reasonable certainty, revenue recognition is 

postponed. 

Contract assels are recognised when there arc excess of revenue earned over billing on contracts.Contract assets are classified as unbilled 
receivables when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms. Contract liability is 

recognised when billing is in excess or revenue. 

c Cash and Cash Equivalents 
for the purpose or presentation in the statement or cash t1ows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash 011 hand, deposits held at call 
with financial institutions; other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible 
to known amounts or cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of chunges in value, and bank overdrafts. 

d Property, Plant and F.quipme11t 
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes freight, duties and taxes and other 
incidental expenses related to the acquisition, but exclude duties and taxes that are recoverable subsequently from tax authorities. Capital work in 
progress includes the cost or assets that are not ready for its intended use and cost or assets not put to use before the balance sheet date. 
Dismantling costs and costs of removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is required lo be included in the cost o r property, 
plant and equipment where ever applicable and Cost of major inspections is recognized in the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment 
as a replacement, if recognition criteria are satisfied and any remaining carrying amount of the cost of previous inspection is derecognizcd. An 
item or property, plant and equipment is derccognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are e11:pcctcd to arise from the 
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the 
difference between the sale proceeds and the carryi11g amount of the asset and is reco6'1lized in profit or loss. 

Depreciation 
Depreciation is provided on \he Straight Line Method over the useful 1 ives of assets as ass~ssed by the management of the Company. The 
management estimates the useful lives of tangible fixed assets as follow: • 

Description l'scful life 

Vehicles 10 years 

Computers 3 years 



Jshoon Solar Power Private Limited 
Notes to Standalone Financial Statemenls for the year ended 31 March 2025 
( All amount., are in !NR thousands unless otherwise staled) 

3 Material accounting policies (Continued) 

e Income taxes 
Income lax expense comprise current tax (i c amount ol' 1ax tor the period determined in uccord,1nc~ with 1hc income-tax law) and deferred tax 
charge or credit (reflecting that tax effects of timing differences between accounling income and taxable income for the period) The deterred tax 
charge or credil and lhe corresponding tJelerred lax liahilities or assets are rcco'gnizcd using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date Deferred tax assets are recognized only to 1l1e extent there is a reasonahle certainty that lhe assets 
can be realized in future; however, where there i~ unabsorbed depreciation or carried forward loss under taxation laws, deterred tax asset~ are 
recognized only if there is a virtual certainty orrealizalion oi'such assets Deferred tax assets are reviewed as at the balance sheet date ,md w ritten 
down or written up to retlect the amOLmt that is reasonably/virtually certain (as the case may be) lo be realized. Current tax and deferred tax a,sets 
and liabilities are offset to the extent to which the Company ha~ a legally enforceable right to sci off and they relate Lo Laxes on income levied by Lhe 
same governing taxation laws 

Minimum Alternate Tax ("MAT") paid in accordanc~ wilh lax laws, which gives rise to future economic beneliLs in lhc form ofadjust111ent of future 
income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the company would pay normal income tax after lax holiday period 
and accurdingly, MAT is recognized as an asset in the balance sheet when it is probable lhal the furure economic benel'it a,sociatcd ,vith it will llow 
10 Lhc company and tile asset can be measured reliably MAT credit cncillcment is reviewed at each balance sheet date and written down to the 
extent there is no convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal income lax during the specified period 

Current and deferred tax for the year 
Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or los,, except when they relate to items that are re~og11ized in other comprehensive income or 
directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively 

Provision.,, contingent liabilities and contingent assets 
fhe Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of past event that probably requires an outllow of resources and a 
reliable estimate can he made of Lhe amount ofthe obligation, A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a 
present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources Where Lherc is a possible obligation or a present obligat ion in 
respect of which the likelihood of'outllow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. Contingent assets are neither recognized 11or 
disclo.1ed in the l'inancial stutements 

Provision for 011erous contracts i.e contacls where the expected unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the 
economic benefits expected to be received under it, are recognized whe11 it is probable that an oulll ow of resources embodying economic bcnetits 
will be required Lo senle a present obi iga1ion a~ a result or an obliga1ing event, based on reliable estimate of such ohligacion 

g Earnings per share 
Basic earnings per equity share is computed hy dividing the nel profit for the year attributable to the F.quily Shareholders by the weighted average 
number of equity shares (]Utstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the year, adJustcd for the 
ctlccts of dilutive potential equity shares, auributable lo the Equity Share.holders by the weighted average number of the equity shure, and dilutive 
potential eyuity share~ outstanding during the year except where the results are anti-di lulive 

h Clish n(lw stidcments 
Cash flows are reported 11sing the ind ire ct method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the el'lects ot' transactions ofa non-cash nature, any 

, dd'errab N ac~rueils of pa'St ur flltllre operating ca'Sh receipts ur payments and item ol' income or expenses associated with investing or financing 
cash !lows The cash tlows trom operating, investing and llnancing activities of the Company are segregated 

Financial instrumenls: 
Initial recognition 
Tile Company recognizes linu11cial as~ets and linurn;ial liabilities when it become, a party to the contractual rrovisions of the instrument. All 
financial assets and liabilities arc recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade receivables which are initially m~asLired al 
transaction price Transaction costs that are directly attributa!Jle to the acquisition or issue or financial assets and financial liabilities, which are not 
at fair vallle lhroLigh prol'il or los-, ar~ add~d In the fair value on i11itial recognition. Regular way purchase and sale 0 1· llnancial assets are accounted 
for at trade date 



lshaan Solar Power Private Limited 

Notes lo Sta ndalonc Financial State men ts for the year ended 31 March. 2025 
(All amormtsare in !NR thousands unless utherwise slated) 

3 \faterial accounting policies (Continued) 

Subsequent measurement 

i) Financial assets carried M amortized cost 
A financial asset is ,ubseqi1ently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a bi1siness model whose objective is to hold the a,.,et in order lo 
collect contractual cash tlows and the contracLual Lerms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flow, that arc solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount mitstanding 

ii) Financial assets at rair value through other comprchcn~ivc income 
A t,nancial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive incume if it is held within a business mo.dd whose objective is 
achieved by bolh collecling conlractual cash nows and ,elling financial asset, and Lhe contractual terms of the financial asseL give rise on specified 
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount out.-;tanuing The Company has made an irrevocable 
election for its investments which are classified as equity instruments to present the sub,equent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income 
hased on its business model. 

iii) Financial assets al fair value through. prolit or loss 
A linancial asset, which is not classified in any of the above categories, is subseyuenlly lair valued through protJt or los,. 

iv) Impairment of Financial Assets 
The Company recognizes loss allowances using lhe expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial a.sseLs which are not fa ir valued 
through profit or loss, Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing cnmponent is measured at an amount equal to lifetime 
ECL, For all other financial assets, ECL, are measured at an amount equal to the 12•month ECL, utlless there has been a significant increase in 
credit risk from initial recognition in which case those arc measured at lifetime IXL, as appli,.1bl~, as the case may be The amount of ECLs (or 
reversals, if any) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting (late to the amount that is requ ired to be recognized is recog11ized as an 
impairment gain or loss in the profit or loss 

v) liinancial liabilities 
Financial liabilities arc subscquenlly carried al amortized cost using the effecLive interest method, except for contingent consideration recognized in 
a business combination, which is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss For trade and other payables maturing within one year 
from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due 10 the short maturity of these instruments. 

Oerc£ognition of financial instruments 
Tl1e company derecog11 izcs a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the fioanciul asset expire or it transfers the financial 
asset and the transfer qualilks for dere,ognition under Ind AS I 09 A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) i~ derecognized from the 
Company's Ualance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

Operating Cydc 
Based on the nature of activities of the company and the normal time between rendering of services and their realisation in ca.:;h or cash 
equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle a, !2 months lor the purpose of classification of its assels and liabilities as current 
und n On ·current. 

I 

ower /::, 
'i-i, \ 

~~) 
' 



lshaan Solar Powe,· Private Limited 

i'iotes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year entled 31 "1arcll 2025 

(All amounls are In J:VR thousands unless otherwise slated) 

3 Material accounting Jlolicies (Continued) 

k Employee Benefits 
i. Short-term employee benefits: Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as short­

term employee benetits These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and ex-grutia The undiscounted amount or short-term employee benefits 

to be paid in exchange for employee services is recognized as an expense as the related service is rendered by employees. 

ii. Post employment 
benefits: 
Defined Contribution Plans 
A delined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified contributions (o a separate entity tmd has no 

nhligation to pay any further amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards employee provident fund to Government 
administered provident fond scheme which is a dctincd contribution plan The Company's contribution is recognized as an expense in the statement 

of prollt and loss during the year i11 which the employee renders the related service 

Defined Benefit Plans 
The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the "Gratuity Plan") covering digihle employees The Plan provides payment to vested 
employees at retirement, death or terminati\m or employment, ofan amount based on the respective employee's salary and the tenure orcmrloyme111 

with the Company The Company provides for grat11ity based on actuariul valuation as at the balance sheet dale T he actuarial valuation has been 

carried out using 'Projected Unit Method' by an independent acluary 

Compensated Absences 
Provision for compensated absences is made hy the Company as at the balance sheet date of the un-availed leave standing to the credit of employees 
in accordance with the service rules of the Company Liabilities related to the compensated absences arc determined by actuarial valuation using 

pro_iccted unit crcd it method as at the balance sheet dale. 

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in the Statement ol' other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur The retirement benefit 

obligation recognized in the Balance Sheet represents the present value orthe defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognized past service 

cost. as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets 

Operating Cycle 
Ba,ed on the nature of activities of the company and the normal time between rendering of services and their realisation in cash or cash 
equivalents, the Company ha.~ determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liahilitics as current 

and non-current. 

m Rc(ent pronou11cements 
Ministry or Corporate Alfairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting 

Standards) Rules as issued from time l\l time For the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments Lo the 

existing .~tandards applicable lo the Company 



lshaan Solar Power Private Limited 
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(All amounts are in !NR thousands unless otherwise stated) 

4 Property, plant and equipment 

Description Vehicle Com outers 

Gross block 
Balance as at 31 March 2023 35.70 33.27 
Additions - -
Disposals - -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 35.70 33.27 
Additions - -
Disposals - -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 35.70 33.27 

Accumulated Depreciation 
Balance as at 31 March 2023 8.16 7.22 
Charge for the year 3.58 11.12 
Disposals 
Balance as at 31 March 2024 11.74 18.34 
Charge for the year 3.57 11.09 
Disposals 
Balance as at 31 March 2025 15.31 29.43 

Net block 
As at 31 March 2025 20.39 3.84 
As at 31 March 2024 24.35 14.93 

Total 

68.97 
-
-

68.97 

-
-

68.97 

15.00 
14.70 

29.70 
14.66 

44.36 

24.61 
39.30 I 

\0 



hhoan Solar Power Private Limited 
Nutes to Stnndalonc (.imrnci.aJ Stotcmcnb for rhe year end,cd Jl March 202:'i 

( . .A.II arnomlls ~rem li\R lhousanJs unles~ olhen.\•Js(.· ~hucJ) 

'1ote 15 Share Capit:tl 

a) Share Ca1lite.l Authorised, lssue{1, Subsc.ribc-d and raid u1>.: 

AulhoriAcd Sh:1n Capital 

Eqm ry ~hare.-. of { l 0 el:l.ch 

b~ued1 Sub!lcribed and Paid up 

Equity ,hare~ oft l0ead1 wilh volu\~ n.i,chts 

A, at JI :\'larch 21ti~ 

Xumber of~hare:!l- Amount 

2,00,000 2,000 00 

I .85,UIIO 1,850 00 

A, al JI :\'lo,ch 20'<4 

Number ofsh.1res Amount 

2,00,000 2,000 00 

1,85,00U 1,850 00 

b} Reconcilj:1tio11 of the llulhbt:r of .5hi!tre~ idntl :mwunt oubtanding at the beginning ~nd at the entl of the ye:u-

A, ot 31 ·"arch 2025 Asat 3 J March 2024 

Number of !iiharei;i Amount Nn111ber of.share., ,.\mount 

Equity Shares off JO t':.ach full)' paid 
At the bcgrnni111: ol" the ~ar 1,85,000 1,8500() 1,85,000 1.850 00 

Ch1mges durmg the- year 
At the end uf the yt:ur 1.85,000 1,850.00 1,85,000 1,850.00 

e) Rights, preferences ~ncl r.cslr!ctions attached to shares 
Equity Sh:1res- The company lrn~ a single c\a~~ of equity !!.hares Accordingly, all equity .~hares rank equally wLth regard to dividend~ amJ shi:lre ul the company1

:=; re11dual assets. The equity shares are 
enlLtk:d tu rci.;:ewe d1vnJcnd .:!15 declared from time to t11nc- The voting rigbt::; of an equity shareholdc-r on a poll (not show of hands) are in p1oport1on to it!!. s.bare of the pa1d-up equity capita l of tbe 
compaoy 

On wmdrng up of thi.; company1 d1c bolder of equity ~hares will be entt1Jed to receive the residual ::1s~et5; of 1he Company, remaining after tlistrtbuliou of all p'feferennal amoun~ in pro_poi11on to lhe number 
of <qu,ty shares held 

d) Sh.1re~ held by huldLng compAn:)' and/ nr their !iiuh!lidiarks / assoeialCi 

A,atJI March2025 A, at 31 Macch 202~ 

Equity share~ of~ l 0 cac:h fi.1lly paid up held by 

Refex Renewable, & lnfrastrncture limited ('the llo!Jin~ Company') 

Pa~bupathy Shankar Gopala11• 

Number of 
shares 

l,84,999 

1,85,000 

"'iVvminee sharehrilda /tc,fdil-iR OfU' sh"re on beh,r~f uf H.e.fex Rc:1w1•·ahfes & ln/"rus1rut·r11r<i (rm11ed ('thf! / lolJing Cvmpuh>,i) 

e) Shareholder holding mon than 5"1., of equity shi:11"es 

Amount 

1,849 99 

001 

1,850.00 

Number of 
shares 

1,84,999 

l,HS,000 

Amount 

0 0 \ 

1,850,0U 

A, at 31 ~torch ltl2S A, al JJ Mar<h 2024 

ill:quity Shan~s or {JO.each with voting rights 

Refe, Renewaoles & Infrastructure lunitcJ 

I) Shar~A ltcld by promolcrs at the l!Rd of the ye.11.r 

Promoter ~.ame 

Refox Rcnewable.s & [nfrastructure l .1mLt~d 
flash upalhy Sh~ nkar Gopalan :& 

Numher or!-!ihnres 

A, 0131 Morch 2025 

1,85,000 

1,84,999 

1.84,999.00 

% 

t)9 <'.)911/,;;i 

00[% 

1001
1/11 

-. N(Jmitll!t:: shwrtho/Jr:r holding v11Cf share on beJw({ofRefe.r R,me1vabfo~ & lnj"ras1r1u.:1,1re limired (fhe Holding (."ompt.my') 

Ca1,ital .'\'1anagcmcnl 

% 

L)L) 99% 

99.99% 

Number o f 
th~tes 

1,84,999 

I 84,999,00 

A, a t JI March 2024 

% 

99,99% 

N11rnber of % o/o of chang~:!l- during 

___ •:::h:.:•:.:.r.:;cs'------- ---~.,.,.,. "'th:.:.•c..v"'ecc.•~r ____ cc--
1,84,999 99 99% 0% 

________ 1 ________ 0_0_1¾_0 -------~()'!'-'-/, 
1 s;;,ooo 100% 0% 

The rom~ny"~ policy i3 to mamtain a ::.tronB capit.nl base so as lo maintain sharl,,.':holders' confidence and to suswin fl1t111·~ de\•eloprnent riftbe bu.s.mc::is C.-1pit!il Unse comprises ofFqu1ty Share Capita l and 
Other Equity ·1·hc CompaL1y·~ ohjective when manu~mg C8.p1tal 1s lo maLntam an optimal strueture so as. (0 rnax11T1iz~ shareholder value 

~ 0 '\/'ler Pr;~ 
~ <)),.. 

0 ~ 
(/) 

c::. :;, 

1/ 
/ 



lshaan Solar Power Private Limited 
'.'/otcs to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(All amounts are in ll\lR thousands unless olherwise s1a1ed) 

Particulars 

"lntc 5 Investments- Non Current 
Inve.~tmcnt in equity shares, fully paid up (unquoted) 

In Subsidiaries ( at cost) 
SEI Tejas Private Limited 
7,215,250 equity shares ot·Rs 10 each fully paid up 
Less: Provision for diminution, other than temporary in nature 

Total 

l\'ote 6 Other flnancial Assets - Non-Current 
Restricted Bank Balances# 
UnRestricte<l Rank Balances 

Security Deposits 

Total 
#- marked as lien against bank guarantees 

Note 7 Othc r .'Ion-Current Assets 
Prepaid Expenses 

laxes Receivable 

:,./ote 8 Inventories 
Raw Material 

Total 

Note 9 Trade Receivables 
l:nsecured 
Considered good 

Trade receivables - Credit Impaired 

Less: Loss Allowance 

Total 

-¼Ing of lrade ,-ecc,hablrs (3 1103/2025): 

llndisputNi Trade Recrimblc,s 

Considered g<>od 

ere dit imp.aired 

Total 

. .\gin: oftrack 1·ruhabll's (31103/202-1.) · 

Undisputed Tr.1H Re-.rit.1bles 

Considered good 

ere dit imp a.ired 

Tota.I 

Less 6 
11111116 months 

mOllths -1 vea1· 

2.63 B,609.43 

- -
2.63 U,609.43 

Less 6 
than, month.~ 

mlllllM - l vea.r 
2.682.84 581.31 

215.07 2:n.:u 
l,897.91 812.55 

1-2 
yea,·s 

3,031.55 

-

3,031.55 

1-2 
years 

J,917.86 

t0,~71.-1& 

18,489.33 

As at 
31 \'larch 2025 

2..3 \'ens 

942. IO 
(942.10) 

21,871.68 

432.47 

22,304.15 

27.01 

792.63 
819.64 

47,819.60 

72.479.85 
I ,20 ,2 99 .44 
(72,479.85) 
47,819.60 

Uor•than.3 
Years 

212.06 30,963.92 

72_479.85 -
72,691.91 30ft63~ 

2-3 Yf'ars 
Mare !hnn 3 

\'rars 

- 42.4-95.14 

lt,266.&5 60,522 22 

11,266.SS 1,03,017.97 

As at 
31 :Vb rch 2024 

942.10 
(942.10) 

14,032.91 
6,940.00 

418.96 

21,31)1.87 

54.02 
2, 102.06 

2,156.10 

1.636.09 

1,636.09 

53,677.75 
82,806.86 

1,36,484.61 
(82,806.86) 
53,677.75 

Toto.I 

4],Sl960 

72,479.85 

1,20,299.44 

Total 

S3,677 75 

82,806 K6 

1,,.,6,4S4.61 



lshaan Solar Power Pri\·ate Limilcd 
Nutcs to Standalone l<'inancial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(All amounts are in !NR thousands unless 01henvise stated) 

P11 rticula rs 

N otc 10 Cash and Cash .Eq uiva lcn ts 
13alances with Banks 

- In current accounts 

Total 

i'fote 11 Other Bank Balances 
Restricted Bank Balances/I 
(with original maturity of more than 3 months having remaining maturity of less than 
12 months from the Balance Sheet date) 

Total 
#- marked as Lien against Rank Guarantees 

i'i ole 12 Loans 
(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise slated) 
To Related Parties: 
Loans Receivable (refer Note 32) 

Considered good 
Credit Impaired 

Less : Loss allowllJlee 
Total 

As at 
31 :Vlarch 2025 

As at 
31 :Vlarch 2025 

5,244.81 

5,244.81 

16,710.15 

16,710.15 

12,805.90 
(12,805,90) 

As at 
31 March 2024 

As at 
31 :V[arch 2024 

764.87 

764.87 

21,294.05 

21 ,294.05 

8,64 l.00 
(8,641.00) 

During the year, additional working capital loans have been given to the related parties that are receivable on demand with an interest rate of 7.0% 
p.a. Interest shall accrue on a monthly basis and shall be receivable as mutually agreed between the parties from time to time. 

'llote 13 Other Financial Assets 

{Unsffured, considered good, unless otherwise stuted) 
Security Deposits 

Interest accrued and due on Loans rccc iv able from related parties 
Considered Good 

Credit Impaired 
Less : Loss allowance 

Interest accrued on fixi::d deposits 

Total 

:-.Jote 14 Olher Current Assets 
Unbilled Revenue 
Prepaid expenses 

Balances due from government authorities 

Advances paid to suppliers 
Other Advances 

Total 

;'-.,. 
l"ft,, 

<:>,.. 
◊ Cl' 

Cl) 

~ 

- ,, 

112.00 1,268.95 

7,733.03 7,733.03 

35,707.50 35,707.50 

(35,707.50) (35,707.50) 

4,448.07 3.345.27 

12,293.11 12,347.25 

736.16 9,56 1.89 

374.01 715.74 

9,163.08 9,304.37 

92.40 

3.71 2.84 

10,276.96 19,677.24 



lshaan Solar Power Private Limited 
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 l\'1a1·ch 2025 
(All amounts are in INR thousands unless othenvise stated) 

Particulars 

Nute 16 Other Equity 

Capital Reserve 
Securities Premium Reserve 

Retained Earnings 

A Capital Reserve 
Opening balance 

Movement~ 
Closing Balance 

H Secu ritics Pri:miu m Reserve 

Opening Balance 
Movements 
Closing Balance 

C Retained Earnings 

Opening llalance 
Add: Profit for the year 
Closing llahince 

Total 

Notes to Reserves 

As at 
31 March 2025 

1,26,951.63 
1,750.00 

(91,782.59) 

1,26,951.63 

I ,26,951.63 

1.750.00 

1,750.00 

( 1,01,747.34) 
9,964.76 

(91,782.59) 

36,919.04 

a) Capital Reserve: Capital Reserve represents excess of the identifiable assets and liabi\itks over consideration paid. 
h) Securities Premium Reserve: Securities Premium comprises the premium received on issue of equity shares. 

As at 
31 March 2024 

I ,26,951.63 
1,750.00 

( 1,01,747.32) 

1,26,951.63 

1,2 6,951.63 

1,750.00 

1,750.00 

(79,047.39) 
(22,699.93) 

(l,Ol,747.32) 

26,954.31 

c) Retained Earnings: Retained Earnings represents undistributed accumulated profit and loss of the Company Lill date. 
These reserves would be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Comapnies Act, 2013. 

N otc 17 Provisions - Non-current 
Provision for Warranty (refer note below) 
Pn.1vision for C,ratuity 
Provision for Compensated absences 

Tutal 

Provision for warranty 
Balance at the beginning t)C lhe year 
Provision made during the year 
Less: Utilisation during the year 
Less: Reversal during the year 
Balance as at the end of the year 

~ote 18 Other Non Current Liabilities 
Billing in excess of Revenue 

3,751.95 
19!.S2 
129.30 

4,073.07 

3,751.95 

3,751.95 

9,356.04 

9,356.04 

3,751.95 
90,44 

75.73 

3,918.12 

4,814.64 

(111.12) 
(951 .57) 

3,751.95 

10,282.09 

10,282.09 



lshaan Solar Power Private Limited 
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(All amounts are in INR thousands unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars 

Note 19 Borrowings-Short Term 
Secured 
from Related party I/­
from hanks# 

Total 

As at 
31 March 2025 

18,400.00 

18,400.00 

As at 
31 March 2024 

12,634.87 

6,565.87 

19,200.74 

# This is a loan obtained from SILRl·:S Energy Solutions Privale Limited which is secured by way of first <.:harge on all current assets. The 
loan carries a interest rate of 12.5% per annum on the outstanding amount and the loan is repayable on demand. 

Note 20 Trade Payables 

Oues to micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note below) 
Others (abo refer Note 32) 

Total 

Ageing of Trade Payables (31/03/2025) 

Undisputed trade receivables Unbilled > l Year 

Micro, Small & ~-[edium Enterprises . • 17.48 

Others . 15_97 

Totnl - 33.45 

Ageing of Trnde Payables (31/03/2024) 

Undisputed ltade receivables Unbilled > l Year 

Micro, Small & Medium Emerprises 

Others 34,881.69 717.99 

Totlll 34,881.6!.l 717 . .99 

1-2 years 

366.29 

11,304.87 

11,671.16 

1-2 years 

446.00 

446.00 

401.76 
38,473.99 

38,875.75 

2-3 years 
More than 3 

years 
. 18.00 

4 _10 27,149.04 

4.10 27,167.04 

2-3 years 
More than 3 

vears 
4,903.23 

863_26 11,190.00 

5,766.4.9 11,190.00 

4,903.23 
48,098.94 

53,002.17 

Total 

401.76 

38,47H9 

38,875.75 

Totnl 

4,903-23 

48,098.94 

53,002.17 

20a Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 

The management has identified certain enterprises which have provided goods and s1crvices lo the Company and which qualify under the 
definition of 'Micro and Small Enterprises' as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ("the Act"), 
Accordingly the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as at 31st M11r<.:h 2024 and 31st March 2023 have heen made 
in the financial statements based on information available with the Company and relied upon by the auditors. 

(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the ~nd of lhe 
accounting year 

(iii) The a mo uni of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made 
to the supplier beyond the appointed day 

(iv) The amount of inter~st due: and payable for the year 
(v) The amount t)l'interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the 
a<.:counting year 

(vi) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, 

until s ::~::: 'ntcrcst dues as above are actually paid 

\/'Jer i~~-
~' {T' 

r 
~ ~ 

---r/ , ~ 

• 

As at 
3 l March 2025 

401.76 

As at 
31 March 2024 

2,544.88 

2,358.35 



lshaan Solar Power Private Limited 
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(All amounts are in JNR lhousands unless otherwise slated) 

Note 21 Other Financial Liabilities 
Interest Payable (also refer Nole 32) 

Total 

Note 22 Other Current Liabilities 
Provision for Income Tax 
Short term provisions 

Statuto1y Dues Payable 
Advances from customers 
Billing in excess of Revenue 
Otherducs 
Total 

<This space ha.s intentional!)' been lrft blank> 

As at 
31 March 2025 

1,113.27 

1,113.27 

489.38 

2,103.73 
367.50 

5.11 
1,938.68 

1.44 

4,905.85 

As at 
31 March 2024 

12,260.26 

12,260.26 

91.99 
105.86 

5,237.63 
81.36 

5,516.84 



lshaan Solar Power Private Limited 
l'iotes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 3 J \farch 2025 

(A II amount,· are in IN!? 1housands unless Olherwise stated) 

Particulars 

:"lote 23 Revenue from Operations 
Revenue from sale & installation of solar water pumps 

Revenue from sale & installation ofrooftop solar grid systems 
Operation & Maintenance # 

Total 

For the Year En tied 
31 Wa rch 2025 

376 08 

12.688 09 

13,064.J 7 

~ The O&M Revenue includes Rs, 87 51 I .akhs for FY 24-25 as per the Settlement Agreement Entrcrcd with Svaryu Energy Limited 

Nole 24 Other Income 
Interest income on fixed deposits 
Provisions/ Liabilities no longer required written back 
Creditors Write Off 
Other income 

Total 

Nole 25 Consumption ofm~tcri~l, erection and engineering expenses 
- Consumption of material, erection and engineering expenses 
- l nstallation & commission & Relateu expenses 

Total 

Note 26 Employee Benefit Expenses 
Salari_es anu wages 
Contribution to provident and olhcr l\.inds (Refer note 34 ) 

Staff welfare expenses 
Total 

Note 27 Finante Costs 
I nteresl expense 

Total 

Note 28 Other expenses 
Rent Expenses 

Rates and Taxes 
Legal and Professional Fees 

Royalty & Fees for technical services 
Tra veiling Expenses 

Security Charges 
Labu u r charges 

Repairs & Maintenance 

Communication expenses 
Subscription charges 

Loading & Un loading charges 
Postage & Courier charges 

O&M Expenses 
Project Management Expenses 
Man rower Service charges 

Inventory Writcoff 

13ad debts written off 
Provision for bad and doubtful debts 

Provision for other doubtful assets 
l.oun Wri(e off 

Bank Charges 

Insurance 
Miscellaneous Expenses 
Printing & Stationery 

Total 
Auditors' rcrn 

Statutory audi 

Tax audit foe 

1,979 09 

22,138 30 
76 53 

394.06 

24,587.98 

1,822,09 
1,509 78 

3,331.87 

2,395.89 

42 32 

118 96 
2,557.17 

2,701,49 

2,701.49 

728.98 

1,692 58 
1,511 87 

369.08 

24 10 

7 l.60 

88 68 
23 59 

3 00 
16 34 

1,600 00 

820.19 
4,000,00 

1,636 10 

362 02 

4,164,90 
!,080,00 

53 72 
282 74 

27.37 

1.8,556.85 

125 00 

125.00 

For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

44,548.75 
3,290 67 

12,795 83 

60,635.25 

2,586.89 

5,443 23 

17 1 94 

8,202.06 

44,098 56 

44,098.56 

2.507 95 

53.23 

8.03 
2,569.21 

5.748.22 

5,748.22 

1,845.82 
55 1.41 

11,251.68 
50 .00 

2,387.27 

168 00 

31 .47 

104 .98 

1,636 09 

14,61445 

3,362 25 

63.04 

333 62 
254.37 

36,654.45 

470 00 

35 00 
505.00 

\1 



Ishaan Solar l'uwcr Private Limited 
Notes to Standalone Fin~ncial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(All anw,mt., are in INR 1ho11sands unless otherwise staled) 

Particulars 

Nute 29 Tu Expense 

Current tax 
Income ta:< c;,.pcnsc reported in the Statement or Pront and Loss 

For the Year F.nded 
31 March 2025 

For the Year Ended 
31 March 2025 

4&9 38 
489.38 

For the ye11r ended 
31 March 2024 

For the year ended 
31 ,\,farch 2024 

2548 28 
2,548.28 

The major components of income tax expense and reconciliation of expected tax expense based on the Jorne~tic effective tax rate of the Company at 26 % and the 
reported tax expense in the statement of profit or loss are disclosed in the note below 

29A Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied hy tax rate 

Accounting profit before income (ax 
Applicable tax rate of for the Company 

At country's statutory income tax rate 
Effect of income and related expenses exempt from tax 

Others 
Impact on current tu11 relating to earlier years arising due lo closure of assessments 
Income tax recognised in profit or loss 

298 Detail~ of Tax rcla led Assets and Liabilities are : 
Taxes receivable 
Provision for taxation 

Total 

Nole 30 En rnings Per Share 
Profit allributable to the equity holders of the Company 
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (in Nos.) 

Face val uc of share (Rs ) 
Basic and uiluted earnings per share 

Note 31 Contingent Liabilities 
Bank guarantees outstanding 

The company does not have any commitments as on 3 !st March 2025 

10,490 12 
25.17% 

2,640 15 

(2,640 15) 

792 63 
{489.38) 
303.25 

9,964 76 
185.00 
1000 
53 86 

38,581 ,83 

(20,247 43) 
26% 

(5,264 33) 
19,920 24 

( 14,655 90) 

7,61025 
(2,632 90) 

4,977.35 

(22,699 93) 

185 00 
IO 00 

( 122 70) 

32,249 42 



lshaan Solar Power Private Limited 
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(All amounts are in !NR thousands unless otherwise stated) 

32 Related Party Transactions 
A. List of related parties ( provided by the management and relied upon by the auditors) 

Name of the related party and nature of relationship 

Nature of Relationship Name of the Related P.irty 
I folding Compm1y Refex Renewables & Infrastructure limited 
Subsidiary SEI Teja~ Private Limited 
Fellow Subsidiaries SEI Solartech private Limited 
Entities in which shareholders of Sherisha Technologies Private Limited 
Holding Company exert significant (Formerly known as SunEdison Em:rgy India Private Limited) 
influence Refex Research India Privatc Limited 

Thi runavukkarasu Dakshi namoorthy 
Key Managerial Personnel Vcnkatesan Krishnan 

Govindaraja.r1 

8. Transactions with related parties for the year ended March 31, 2025 

Nature of the Transaction Name of the Related Party For the year ended 
31 March 2025 

Loan Given SE\ Teju:; Private Limited 5,338.23 

Loans advanced received back SE! Tejas Private Limited 93.33 

Purchases SEl Tejas Private Limited 156.00 

For the year ended 
3 l March 2024 

5.908.00 

2,649.90 

539.25 



lshaan Solar Power Private Limited 
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(All amounts are in INR Lhousands unless olherwise srated) 

32 Related Party Transactions (Continued) 
C. Balances as at year end 

Nature of the Transaction Name of the Related Party 

Interest Payable: SEl Solartech Private Limited 

Interest Receivable SE! Tejas Private Limited 

lnkrest Receivable SLmEdison Energy [ndia Private 1.imited 

Interest Receivable Refox Rencwables & Infrastructure limited 

Investment in Subsidiary SEI Tejas Private LimitL:d 

Loans Receivable SE! Tejas Private Limited 

Trade Rcceivabk Refex Rcncwables & Infrastructure limited 

Trade Receivable SE! Tejas Private I ,imited 

33 Segment Reporting 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

1,[13,27 I, 113.27 

-
35,707.50 35,707.50 

- 2.548.27 
5,397.61 5,397.61 

942.10 942.10 

-
13,885.90 8,64 1.00 

34.272.34 42,272.34 

22,025.59 24,380.76 

lnd AS I 08 estabfohes standards for reporting information about operating segments and related disclousre about product and services, 
geographical areas and major customers. Based on 'management approach' as defined in Ind AS IOR, for the year ended March 2025, the 
Board of Directors evaluate the company perfomancc by its only business segment comprising of supply, installation, commissioning and 
maintenance of solar water pumps and hence information for such segment has been presented as part of the Balance Sheet and Statement of 

profit and loss. 

Geographical Segments• The Company ha,'; only one geographical segment vii .. , India. 

Details of income from major customers 

Name of Customer 
Year ended 31 March Year ended 31 March 

2025 2024 

Tripura Renewable Energy Development Agency (TREDA) 66% 78% 

Arunachal Pradesh Energy Development Agency (APEDA) ti% lo/o 

Svaryu Energy Limited (Formerly known as Refex Energy ltd) 0% 14% 

lndividual Customers & others 23% 6% 



lshaa n Solar Power l'rivate Limited 
Notes to Sta ml a lone Financial St:, tement., for the year emled 31 ~larch 2025 
(All amm1nl are it1 l:\R thousa11Js, unlc.~s oll1~rwise slHtc<l) 

l4 Emolovcc Bcncfo10: 

Defined Contribution Plans: 

The Company makes l'rovide11t Fund contrihutions which are oet,ned co11tribu1ion plans, for yualifying employees Under the Scheme, 
lhc Company is required lo conlribuic a spccilicd purccnlagc ur the payroll cosls to fund the bcncllts. The Company recognised Ks 
42 JI thousand towards Provident Fund contributions in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

Defined lfonefit Pluns: 

Com pen•• led Absences Plan 

31 -~•orch 2025 31 Morch 2024 

CoRl po nen ts uf E mp love1·1 s F..x p f'n !ie: 

Cu11cnt S..:rvii::c Cost 53,57 25 82 
Past Service Cosl . 
Interest Cnst -
,\ctuadal LO~!i~~ (Gain~) 
Tula I expense recogni.-.e-U in the Sl.utemenl of 

53.57 25.82 
Profit and Lns:s 
Total «renscl(jncome) recognised in the 
Other Comprehensive Income 

. 

ChonEcs in the Defined Benetic Obli~ation /DBO) durine the ,ear, 

P1csc11l valut al the hL:~innin,-i: ofy~i:l.r 

Interest Cost 
Service CO!)l 

Benefits r,,id 
Ai.:tuarir1I (Gain:,;)/Lo::;;scs 
Pre..~~t ,·alue et the emf of"·ear 

Liabilitv rceoe.nised in the balance sheel 

Current Poni on 
Kon-Current P<Jrtion 

Actuari:-tl Assumptions~ 
DiSCOlult Rme 

F.xpected J ate of return on assets. 
expected rnte of salary Increase 
Nmrnal 1ctirmcnt age 
.-1111•i1wn R<lle 

Uplo 30 vt:-ars 

)1-44 veaJS 
A buvc 44 y(,:ars 

Monalitv (% of IALM 2012-20141 

Sensili'Vity Analysis 

Gratuity : 

Di~cow1l Rate {T/+ ) 1~t) 

(% c han.ie conurnred to EiC tHnl) 

Salafv )!'rnwth l'ate (-/•l%l 
(% \·hange comp;1red ro ,1cn1al) 

,\ltl'ition rate ( -1 • 50%) 
( 111/.-.. change compared to actual} 

Monalitv rnle (-1+!0%) 
(% cl1an~c compatt"cl to ai.:tual) 

Lca1t·t E.ncash1ncnt : 

Discount Rate(-/+ !%) 
(~-'o chanJ:!e compared lo aclual) 

S11larv µ;1owlh UHc (-,'+1%} 
(% change comumed to acl1La]) 

Comncnsated Abunces elon 

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 
75 73 54.88 

53 57 25,82 
- (,I,%) 

129.30 75.73 

Comncn, atcd Absences Plan 
l 1 ~larch 2025 

6 22 
69 5 I 
75.73 

A.'i at J 1 Marc:h 2025 
6 ,75% 

NA 
800% 

60 vears 

0,00°/o 
0.00% 
0,00% 
100% 

31 Mar<h 2014 

0,33 
128,97 

129.30 

A~ !ll Jl .'\-1:m:::h 2025 

Decrease. Increase 

220 02 167 50 
14 70% -12.70% 

167 56 219 3</ 
-12 70% 1440% 

191.82 191.82 
0_00% 000% 

19197 191.67 
0,00 -0J 0¾ 

A.o; at JI March 2ll25 
Dec-reasc- Increase 

148.JI I \2.91 
l•l .70% . 12 700.,,;. 

112.1),1 147.89 
-12-7()% 1440% 

129-30 12930 

0 00% 000¾ 

129_:.I!! . 
0.10% 

12? 20 

Gratuity 

31 March 202S 

5~ 93 

6.46 
JS 99 

65,39 

35,99 

Gratuity 
3 I March 2025 

9U.41 
(,4G 

58.9J 
. 

n 99 
191..11.2 

Gratuitv 
31 Morch 2025 

0 49 
191..34 
191.82 

As at 31 Much 2024 
7 15% 

t,;i\, 

S 00% 
60 veau 

3.00% 
2 00% 
I 00% 
100¾ 

31 March l024 

74_21 

7.78 
(95 77) 

81.99 

(95.77) 

Jl IH•rch 2014 
104,22 

7.78 
74 21 

(95 77) 
90.44 

31 .,lurch 2024 

029 
90. 15 
90.44 

As at 31 Much 2024 

Decrease lncreasc 

tUO 52 81 60 
II l0% 9 80% 

RI 5& 100 33 
-9 80%. 10.90% 

104,94 77 99 
16 00% - 1180% 

90A6 9UA2 
0 uo 0.00% 

As ot 31 March 2024 
Dtcrea!l.e J.ncrease 

82.72 69 SR 
tJ 20% -8,10% 

6957 82 59 
-R 10% 9.10% 

77.88 H .3J 
2 80% -\.90%, 

7575 75 71 
0 00% 0.00% 



(sha.a11 Solar Power PJ'l',ate Limited 
NDlci lo Sl~ndalone Fitlanci11I St.olemtnts for lht- l'tat ended Jt Match 202:5 
(A IJ (rmOlmt.l· are fn INR lho•rsonds rrt1less orh~nv,s~ sfol<?d) 

35 Fsir V1dure Mcuurtments 

Fl11anti11l instruments bv cii tee at\' 
Petlicu.li.rs 

Fil\enti11I And~ 
Tm.de Rco:L v~bles"' 
C.:ish ar,d Cash Eau1valcnrs N 
Otllet B..u,I; Dala.oc.e-s# 
Loa.its Rc;ceivahle 11-

0ttler Fi.-.allcial Assets• 
TOT AL ASSETS 

ll"im1ncial Liabi lit:iL-s 
Borrowin~ # 

Trade Ponbles-• 
Other Financial Li11hilities• 
TOTAL LIABJLITlY.S 

t'articulits 

Finanti11l A~scts 
Trade Rcu:i\labJes• 
Cash .ind fa-.h E~ i1;alents Jt 
Other h;ink b~lar1ces M 
Loon~ Ri.xx.;iv~bk II 
Otbt-f Financial Ass~1s• 
TOTALASSHS 

l''inftt1tilll Li111bililie.s 
Dor.ro-wimtsM 
Trade Pavablcs" 
Other t"ill:lrlei.11 Lm.bilitics" 
TOTAL LJADILlTlES 

FVPL 

FVFL 

As ,t 3 I March lOlS 

FVOC\ 

Ai nl J I M11'C'h lU2-."i 

Amortiud c:a:d 

41.81960 
524HI 

16.710 15 

11291 II 
Sl.061.67 

11.40000 
l!.375 15 
l.lllll 

58 89.0l 

fVOCI Amortised cast 

Sl,677 15 
1MR1 

21.29◄ 05 

Jl l5l 75 
1 07.992.4? 

19,200 N 
54.14581 
12 260 26 

•The ca.r[)'irlQ; \·alue or these accounts. are consit!eted to be the same as their fhir ,·lllur:. t1ue to their short tem"I 11.1tu,e 

'1- Thes~ account~ are considered to be hio,"hlv I iQu W atid tht:. c1trrvicut lltru)ut\t of these are wn~idered ro De the same .JS l:bei r f.:i i r value 

L,,,.111 

Lu:cl l Lcn llll 



I shlil sin Solar Power- Pnvn le Limited 

N ule5 to Star1cl1dom:: Fi1umdal St11lemM!s for thi!: vt'lllt ended J 1 M Atch 202!!! 
/Ail omormu "n in INR 1horiurnds unless otfier,mt! stated) 

36 l'lna11cJ11I Risk Mt1noe:emer1t 

The Com~y's a.etwitLCS expose 1t to ;1 cornbinJ.tLOn of fmancial mks in tl1e: fonn of credit nsk ,md liquidity risk The Coml),'llny'.s prim;J.I')· rocu:-. i~ ro foresee the unpredictaDility of fm:me:i111I mllJi;ds atitl seek to 1r1iaimtze potc:nh;,il 
~dversc effects 011 it~ finzini.:iat pe,rform1111i.:c: 

fl) Crr:i.lil Ri~k 

CndU risk ntQ'1tJHf!flknt 

C.~-ciit nsk 1s I.he risk of fiRill'lciul Joss ln Uw OOmpclll)' if~ c~!.to~r or i:-utm'lerparty to a Einancial instnimi::nt fai\s to meet its co11tract,.ml obligations and arise, princi~ll)' from l'he companfs rCWiv.abl-i::~ from eustom~rs Thi:= 
ma.ximum i;xposure co cro:ILt risk LS equal to the carrying \·illuc of the t"manciill iLSSCts 1·hc objccll~•c ofm;,aagjng eounferpany cn:-dit risk i.~ lu rn::venl lo~e~ in ti11aiK1:1I assets The co111p~y as.~~~es the cr'el.Jit qualny ofth~ 
countcrp.i ntes, rak iflg into ~ount cbt::Lr fi rlllnci,l pruition. p,-st 1.,"'.'l:pi.;rienct: an~ othi;r fi.ccors 

a1PrMisio11 for c:1:pci:led crtdit lens 

Dzi.1:od on the avcrag~ of lmroric.al trend or loss a.lluwaru:e foom the previou:t yt:ars , th.t: C(lmpzin,- m.i.k~s: a p,o~·ision IOr e:.'(pected credit loss on !he c:i-.ining trade ri.;~i,·ahli:: l)ala.i1re Ove..r and abo"c this, jp~citic provision is made 
.1Q;Jinst ta:eivable which arc agrcd more than 36j d:L~•s ,1nd where the mart.LtCmcnt bclcivcs that there 1s ,1 risk of non c.oll~!ion 

Ye11r l1tdt:d Mlll.r<:h Jl, 2025: 

Aelne- in davs Velo l )C.01' More th:rn l )'5tu1 Totc1I 
Gross. ca rrvin'I! .m1ount 13.612 06 1.06.6~7 ]~ 1.20,29944 
Provision for c;,:pccted (;J't:tlit In'.).<.: (72,419 &5) (72,479 85) 

C:,.rrying .1mount ortndc- n:iti.:inhlc~ (nd urimpairrrumt) IJ,6Jl.06 J4,2U7.S4 47,819.60 

Ye11r e11dtO March lLZUl4: 

Atin11: in dftVJ (IDtC l vt:Rf Mor e lhRn 1 Y\'Dr" To1nl 
Gross ciu.r,-·in~ amount 3,710~6 l.)i.774 15 1.36.484 61 
t>rovision lOr expocted credit Joss 172.4~ 85) (72,419 8~) 

Corryin~ .amount o! rrode. receivables (net or impairment) 3,710.46 60,294.31 64,004.11 

(Ii) LiQuidity Risk 
Liqu1dit}1 risk 1s the risk that the company wdJ not be able to meet its tinancml obhg,1110J1s ilS they bcoomc due The- eompan)' manRgeS it'- liquidity riS:k. D)· eusu,ie1,g, as fur as possible:. ch"t it will alw.tys h::we s.utlieient llqlliUily to 
m~L its li.i.bilities whl=n tlue Tile company di=~tl.,. cm il!. re.lal-t,t.l p1.rtii=s. fbr shmt Lt:rm fund~ <o m;,iint.rin liquidity for ru1r1mng its working c:1p1tal requirements 111 adtii1ion, proiz.si.es a.ilU policies relatcd.fO suc:h ri!Jl.-:s arc ovcrsocn Dy 
senior man:1gemcnt 

The workmt!: ca1>11al position of the CornJ)am is o,i'YCl1 below: 
rarlii:ulllll'S 

Cash. .:u,d Cilsh. E'.Quivale11rs: 
Tohl 

Thi= lohlt bt:ltMi provides delatts rega1ding the rnnlr.icht11I maturir..ii=s (lf .~igniflc1tnt financial li.ahililii::s .as a.t 31 March 2025 a.nd 31 M:irch 2024: 

P11nicul1us 
u-. tlinn 0tn• ,•~ft.r I 

TTtJdc: Pn,·ahlc.~ JJ_., I 
Bun m,·~ni:i"t 

IT nrnl JJ.45 I 

PartkPliu·~ 
l.u..~ than oo.e. vear I 

Track: Pa.vabJi;::; .SJ.OU2 !1 I 
g,...,.,,.\l·lli!i llUUO 74 

IT nlOI 72 l~UI I 

S 244 &I 

A• •< J 1 M ·--h 1025 
1.-2 Yi':llnl I 2 ·"· · ·, mt ,abn'IC'" I 

11.011 16 I n111_1., [ 
11,0000 
JIL07l. 1.6 I 27 171, 15 I 

As.,' M.an:h 1024 
1-2 0Je11ni l v e11n tmd Jlbo\·e I 

- I 

l 

A.,., 

31 Moreh 2024 

764 87 
76U7 

'Total 
J&.87575 
IRA~0 00 

:<7.?1S.7S 

Tot• I 
53.002 17 
19 lll0.74 
n.?Ol.?1 



Nutu lo St.1t.ndl'llnm: foi112111cial St11tcmi::1Lh; for the: vcu c:nck,1 31 l\l11nh 2025 

J7 l'ohc:dt:erl fi'on:i~rl l'lltl'en.c..-
Th,; C'ompilil) 's c-pi:-ralinns .JDri ,lll 1r,111s.,cU01Js. Jrc ,, .. 11hm !nd,;,1 :i11d th.;;si: ,,r.;; h.:1l,111ccs of 1>rcHoos) can and Ilene~. c.'Cpos.urc to for~lf!ll c11rrcnct risk is very mm1111;:il 

PDrlic.ul::1rs 

As :11U ,l:.i ·Ii J l 24.12.5 
Asa :\· rd J l 24.IN 8.52 

38 Cnmrili:m r~ with L nws 11ml Rt.•~uh, lion~ 

l'hc Co1npa11~ had troma.ct1om 111 J-01~1~1, cum.:iK) 1~1111 1>::1.r11~ outside !i1eJi:i (\1·1th ~rnup i.:0111p&11-:s) rrl.alm~ to ".1ri1..1us cunt,acls duii,1Q, H1-:. ptccccd1~ )cars Ai ac thi,; b1'l~n1,:i.: sru:-!l 1.bk tln:te a1i;: b.1Ja11ccs \\•l11ch are 

rc:L.:i~·:-il,lcip:l}~hli.: fmm par1i..:i;; nursr.,11rlii1g bcyonrl Lh,_. pl:r•OO 1>:.:n111,rc,rJ under IHH.'f·•t-:MA n.:u.ubttons Mor.;:o\·cr rdc\•::mt Jllllll~I filio~ airu-J n:t11ms n:quil'sd to bi.: filed umkr RBI/FE MA <cg11!at1011 wtth Cl'Sl'~~t to fori.:1g11 c11rri.;ne;~­

trn11srichons1bula11i.::cs h::i\'C flOt Yfl b1:cn 1;.amcd out h~ chi.: Cump:.111} Th~ Compun~ 1s 1r1 Lhi.: prnu.::..s ofm11Latmg ru:ccss;,ir::,· act1mtl!. ln i.:umpl) ,\1tt1 tl1<!- rc:li.::v:t.lll requLrcmcnts und.:r Rl-lJ..'FF'.MA rcgulal,on:,;; .\i.:i..:ordmgl~- 11n pa.ct l"ur Lhi.: 

~;i.mc is not cnrc11tly Jo:.:1o;.·rmi1mbk :ind QlKlllt1Jiablc 

J9 Di~cl,mn-e orinform:llliun in !Nm~ nr s«.tion 186 (~) of the Como;"lnii.:s Ac~. lUl l : 

Nntt re or Rtln1loruhl ll MMt:h 202!; J L '.\-Larch _zu:2,,1 

L(ci Woak11w C:a 111:tl I i !l.l OU X 6'-1 1 rn1 

40 l'i1lllJlCi11 I nllios 

Rtitio~ Dctcrmim1n1 
!4-'?~ 23-24 

lHvillti o11 kens.oa 
Arno1.1111 IHsl R~Cio .\momu Ohl R111lo 

Cum::nt As:sf't 92,)Hol L09,J97 n 
r.um:nl r.1110 I •l(i I 22 J.0% 

C'.LJrn.:nt L1c1b1hly /,J,294 &r. R'J,93001 

lotal L>cl>t 18.400 00 19,ll!IJ N 

Dcht-Ec1u11y r::i110 i, :~1 0 r,7 -2\'% 
R:-i1io dccl1r1ru due [0 

n.:Uucllon Ln hal:n lHi,i,:.s 

Shon;:hokkrs F'.q111t~· ;lij,7(,9 04 13,804 l I 

FRITl)A l 3.Z06 27 (l•l,<>491) Rilt io Jcdin-1."d du, "' 
Dc::~L SC:T"Vlt.:~ CU\.-C-r::l5i.: rati() 0 63 ·O ;~ -20~% rtdue-tiou ;n s::ilcs. 00 

il~tutml u I" 110 rn:w pmJt:i..:ts 
Pr1 nc1pal - ln11..:ri.:sl 21,101 -19 24,94R 96 umkm1.kcin 

Net Prol11 I 0,000 75 (22.79! /I) Ru.ho ch:chriOO d11c IO 

Rc111rt1 on l,.',Qlltty r.1t10 ,0 79 - JH% 
tcdUCLIOI\ iri sale:~ on 

0 26 
-i:cm.mL of m, new projcc l.s 

Sh.ircl1oldcrs t:qmly J!,169 04 7.l:U:llM 31 1,111dc1ta.krn 

Ket ~.ales JJ,064 11 60.(,~5 l-~ 

lm~itory tu11lO\·cr ratio 15 97 s 21 210% 
1111/c:11 LDI)-" h.as h~n wr Jll-t:n 

off d11m1g ,he yc::ir 
A \lc:rn~e lnvcnlDr:,- &18(1.~ 14-415 19 

N1,;:LCrcd1tS:11lcs IJ,06J 17 (,O.(i.3S '--~ 
Tr.;ido'.,: rnc,·iw1,hlc~ tumo,·1,r ra110 0 26 0 78 -C,7% ROOucLi(Jll i11 N i::t ~.Jlt:s 

1\veri'.1~ TracJc: Rc:vt:wabfos 50,748 6A 77.)93 g1 

R:;,.Uo dccJmcd due to 
Net Credit P urch.1s~ J.331 ,11.1 .:14.IJtJ::!i :i(i. 1~ hlcli(l11 m s;iles on 

Trade p;1yabJcs LllmO\·e, fMio 0 07 0 jj.0 -9 t% 
:l.et."'Outll of 110 new projccn 

1\vu,1ge T1:1o1.Je Pa>•ilbj1:$ 4l.9JK % )4.941 29 u,M.krrnki:o 

rui1t0"~~ IJ,064 17 60.6H 15 
R.1t10 d\'Clincd Jue 10 

Ni.:t e,,11it.il tim1ovcr ratio 0 ,I\ 0 72 -J7% 
ti::duc.11011 in T um('Jvcr 

WoAing C.1pitail W,U497(, Jt.-l,fi7926 

1' ~t P'rutit I 0.000 75 {22.79571) 
Ralm 1nt.:n:J:,;~ .iu, '" N.::t j)i"Olit irltLO 0 71 -0 JR 304% 

11n) fll Ill the CUHCllt ~·car 
run,o~•cf 13.064 17 60.6.J) 25 

EBIT n.19161 (76,JM 08) 

R.::1 um 011 cap1c.i I ..:mplo~ 00 0 25 -). 6.i IJU-% 
Ratio itL('(('J~f't.l Ju~ lo 

C.1p1fal Cmplo~ccl 52,1()~ 1(1 2X,104 JI 
proll1 111 Lhi.:: currn1r yc:::ir 

--· 

) 



r sluum Solat' Pow ct I'tiv11te Limited 
Nores to S1ani:btliJnl' Fid1mci11i S1arernenti for 1he \'tar ended Jl Mnrrh 11125 
/All mnom11s w·e ht /NU 1Ju:w.sontlr 1mJe.vs Qlhuwise !lfQlcd) 

41 Subsequent Even Is 
The,e are rlO events that occurred after the reponing date which would required ad_iu&tinent in this fina11eial ~tateme11ts 

42 Additinn.d regulA.tory i.nrormatioo required by Schedule Ill 
(i) Delnil, of Benami f<0pcrly h,ld 
Na proceedings have been initiate(! on or are pending again~t the group for h.oldir1g benilmi propertyunde-r the Heoami Trcmsac1ioJ1!! (Prohibition) Act, 198S (4S of 1988) !lnd Rules. made thereunder 

(ii) Working c-n:pil.tl limits from Bank, or Fino1nd.1I [nstitutiud:s .on lhe bJJ.!is of securi,y of current misel! 
Th.e company has. not availed any workinP, capital loar1 from ha:iih 

(iii) Wurkiflg c11pitQI limits rrnm others on the basjs orsecnrity orturre11t li9selS 
The company has Dorrnwe<l from a private limited company for its worki1ig capital purpose 

43. Additi0Rr1I disclosurei punuant to l'lmendmenh made in Compnnie., Act, 20l3. 
i The Company has r10 immovable property whose title deeds are not keld Ln lhc n11m..: oftlu.· Cornper1y and ii al.!lu hB.!i no ,uch in11t1ovable p,o_perty jointly held with oth.ers 
ii) The Conipar1y ha~ nor revalued ils. prnperty plant aod equiprne11t 
i"1i) During the year, the Company has not granted any loans. or adv.:mcei; i11 the nature or lo ems which are eilher reraya l)le on demand or without !.pecifying any terms or period of rep,ay111ent to p,omotcn, 
directors. KMPs aod the related rauies ( .ai; defined under Cornpanies. Acl 201 l) either severefly or jointly with any 01h.er pe-r.so11 
iv) No prnceeding.s have Deen initiared or pending again.st the Company for holding any benami property under the Ben.a.mi Transactions (Prohibition) Act. 1988 ( 45 of 1988) and the rules made therem\tlc:r. fur 
v) The Company is: nut dcch1.rcd as wilful defaulter IJy iUI}' bank or llmmcial [nstitulion or other lender 
vi) Tht:: Company hos nol eulcrcd inlo any lr.tms;;ictions wilh companii;:,~ which are struck off under 3ec1io11 248 of the Companies Acl, 2013 or section 560 ol'Cornpanies Act 1956 duri!"lg th<: financial year ended 
vii} JJ\Jrin~ tht; year Comp.;iny h~s 001 advaneC<J vt loam.:d or invc~tcd funds (either borrowed fund~ or or share prcmilllT'I ::my olhc:r S01Jrces or ki11d ol l\ll1d~) to aJ1y other person(s)or cntity{Lts). including foreig11 
entLly (ies) (i11tcrrnediaties) with thcundctsc1mding (whether recorded in writing or othern'i.se} that the [ntennediary shall 

a direc1ly or indirectly leod or inves.t ir1 other persons or entilies identified in eny menner wh.e1soever by or on behalfol'the coo1pany ( Ultimate beneficiaries) 
b Provide any g.uarantee ,security or the like to n11 to or 011 be.half of the ullim-111e beneficiruies 

44 P.-e,,,ious ye~r figures have been regrouped whr.:tcvc.:r nccc~~ary lo cunfi:mn to current yeu'i cJas~fication 

Forand on hehsllro(the Board or l>i.rectors or 
J11ha1m Sol11r Power Privetc limited 

Govindarajan 
Oirectoc 
DIN 110214-1\ 
Pl11ce: Chennai 

o.,. : 2510412025 

Ven.k.a ltsa n Kri~hna n 
Director 
1)1N: 082457ti 
Place: C:hennai 

Date : 25104/2025 


